
 

 

 

La ropa - Clothing 

los pantalones the pants 

 

la blusa the blouse 

los pantalones 

vaqueros/ los jeans 

the jeans los calcetines/  

las medias 

the socks 

el vestido the dress 

 

la camisa the shirt 

una camisa de manga 

corta 

the short sleeve shirt una camisa de manga 

larga 

the long sleeve shirt 

el abrigo the coat 

 

la chaqueta the jacket 

el cinturón the belt 

 

las gafas / los anteojos the glasses 

las gafas de sol/  

los anteojos de sol 

the sun glasses la maleta the suitcase 

el suéter the sweater 

 

el traje de baño/ 

el bañador 

the bathing suit 

la camiseta the t-shirt 

 

las sandalias the sandals 

la ropa interior the underwear las pijamas/ 

la ropa de dormir 

the pajamas 

la falda the skirt 

 

los pantalones cortos the short 

la sudadera the sweatshirt 

 

las pantimedias the stockings 

el pañuelo the handkerchief 

 

los guantes the gloves 

la gorra the hat 

 

el sombrero the brimmed hat 

el paraguas the umbrella 

 

el impermeable the rain coat 

la corbata the tie 

 

el traje the suit 

la bufanda the scarf 

 

las botas the boot 

los tacones the heels 

 

un par de tenis a pair of sneakers 

un par de zapatos a pair of shoes 

 

la pulsera / 

el brazalete 

the bracelet 

el bolso the purse, the handbag 

 

la cartera the wallet 

el collar /el colgante the necklace 

 

los aretes the earrings 
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el anillo the ring 

 

el reloj de pulsera the watch 

 

los colores - Colors 

amarillo yellow 

 

azul blue 

blanco white 

 

gris gray 

marrón/ pardo/café brown 

 

negro black 

rosado/ rosa pink 

 

rojo red 

verde green 

 

violeta/ morado/ purpureo purple 

anaranjado/ naranja orange canela 

 

tan/beige 

oro gold 

 

plata silver 

claro 

(azul claro) 

light 

(light blue) 

oscuro 

(azul oscuro) 

dark 

(dark blue) 

 

 

En la tienda de ropa – In the Clothing Store 

el centro comercial mall 

 

la tienda de ropa clothing store 

el escaparate window display 

 

la planta/ el piso floor 

la receta receipt 

 

el precio price 

la caja cash register 

 

el departamento department 

el empleado / 

la empleada 

employee el número number 

el cajero/ la cajera cashier un saldo/  

una liquidación 

sale 

el cliente /  

la clienta 

customer gratis free 

la talla/ el tamaño size 

 

el regalo gift 

pequeño/a,  chico/a small 

 

mediano/a medium 

grande large 

 

el dinero en efectivo cash 

los cheques de viajeros traveler’s check 

 

el cheque check 



el euro euro 

 

la tarjeta de crédito credit card 

el peso peso 

 

los dólares dollars 

mucho  a lot 

 

poco a Little 

caro expensive 

 

barato cheap 

 

 

En las tiendas especiales – In Specialty Shops 

la panadería bakery shop 

 

el pan bread 

la heladería ice cream shop 

 

el helado ice cream 

la carnicería butcher’s shop 

 

la carne meat 

la pastelería pastry shop 

 

los pasteles y las tortas pastries and cakes 

el mercado market 

 

la comida food 

el supermercado supermarket 

 

los comestibles groceries 

la zapatería shoe store 

 

los zapatos shoes 

la pescadería fish shop 

 

el pesado y los mariscos fish and seafood 

la verdulería vegetable store 

 

los vegetales vegetables 

la frutería fruit store 

 

las frutas fruit 

la joyería jewelry store 

 

las joyas jewelry 

la librería bookstore 

 

los libros books 

la mueblería furniture store los muebles 

 

furniture 

la farmacia pharmacy 

 

la medicina medicine 

el almacén department store 

 

la tienda de descuentos discount store 

el restaurante restaurant 

 

las marcas name brands 

el puesto/ el tenderete stand, market stall el vendador/ 

la vendadora 

vendor 



el producto product 

 

el kilo kilo (system of 

measurement) 

un carrito shopping cart 

 

las compras purchases 

la lata the can 

 

un paquete package 

una botella bottle 

 

un frasco / un bote jar 

una tajada a slice/piece congelado/ 

congelada 

frozen 

 

Una comidas – Some Food 

los guisantes/  

los chícharos 

peas las judías verdes/ 

las habichuelas verdes 

green beans 

las zanahorias carrots 

 

las cebollas onions 

los pimientos peppers 

 

el maíz corn 

las naranjas oranges 

 

las manzanas apples 

los plátanos bananas 

 

las uvas grapes 

la piña pineapple 

 

la mayonesa mayonnaise 

el atún tuna 

 

el jamón ham 

 

En un mercado indígena – In an Indigenous Market 

el mercado indígena indigenous market 

 

la artesanía craftsman shop 

los tejidos fabric, material 

 

los instrumentos instruments 

las cerámicas ceramics 

 

las pinturas paintings, pictures 

 

 

Los números – Numbers 

cien 100 ciento 100 (used for 101-199) 

doscientos 200 trescientos 300 

cuatrocientos 400 quinientos 500 

seiscientos 600 setecientos 700 

ochocientos 800 novecientos 900 

mil 1.000 millón 1.000.000 

 

 

 



Los verbos - Verbs 

llevar to wear 

 

buscar to look for 

rebajar to reduce, lower 

 

calzar to wear, put on 

pagar 

 

*to pay for  regatear to bargain, haggle 

comprar to buy 

 

costar* (o  ue) to cost 

usar to use 

 

vender to sell 

ponerse** to put on poder* (o  ue) 

 

to be able to (can) 

ir* de compras to go shopping 

 

querer* (e  ie) to want 

vender to sell se vende  is sold 

 

 

 

Los lugares - Places 

el banco bank 

 

el estadio stadium 

el hospital hospital 

 

la universidad college 

la clínica clinic 

 

el templo temple 

el museo museum 

 

la biblioteca library 

el parque park 

 

la casa house 

el hotel hotel 

 

la discoteca dance club 

la piscina pool 

 

la iglesia church 

el correo post office 

 

la gasolinera gas station 

el cine movie theater 

 

el aeropuerto airport 

la estación de policía police station 

 

la escuela school 

la estación del tren train station 

 

la tienda store 

la estación de bomberos fire house 

 

la lavandería laundry mat 

el zoológico zoo el ayuntamiento town hall 

*irregular verb; see “los verbos irregulares” section for conjugation 

**reflexive verb; see “los verbos irregulares” section for conjugation 



el colegio high school 

 

el balneario spa, beach resort 

el gimnasio gymnasium 

 

la peluquería hair salon 

 

El transporte – Transportation 

el tren train el carro/el coche/ 

el auto/ el automóvil 

car 

la bicicleta bicycle 

 

ir* a pie to go by foot 

el barco/ el barquito boat/ small boat 

 

el autobús escolar school bus 

el avión airplane, plane 

 

la motocicleta motorcycle 

el metro subway 

 

el taxi taxi 

 

Las direcciones – Direction Words 

lejos de far from, far away 

 

cerca de next to, near 

encima de on top of 

 

entre between 

a la izquierda de to the left of 

 

a la derecha de to the right of 

debajo de underneath 

 

arriba above 

detrás  behind 

 

delante/ enfrente de in front of/ facing 

al lado to the side of 

 

alrededor de around 

 

Las palabras interrogativas: Question Words 

¿Qué? What? ¿Cuántos? / ¿Cuántas? How many? 

 

¿Cuál? 

 

Which? ¿Cómo? How? 

¿Quién? / ¿Quiénes? 

 

Who? ¿Dónde? Where? 

¿Por qué? 

 

Why? ¿Cuándo? When? 

¿Cuánto? / ¿Cuánta? 

 

How much? porque because 

 

 

 



Otras palabras útiles – Other Useful Words 

la gente people 

 

diferente different 

todos/ todas all 

 

Es verdad. It’s true. / Sure. 

Te sale más barato. It’s much cheaper 

 

Te queda bien. It fits you well. 

¿A cuánto está(n)…? How much is/are…? 

 

Está(n)… It is/ They are 

¿Algo más? Anything else? 

 

Nada más, gracias. Nothing else, thanks. 

 

Las expresiones útiles – Useful Expressions 

¿Cuánto cuesta(n)? How much is it? Cuesta(n)… It costs… 

¿Cómo puedo pagar? How can I pay? Puede pagar con… You can pay with… 

¿Qué talla usa? What size do you use? Yo uso/ Yo llevo… I use/ I wear… 

¿A qué hora…? At what time…? A la(s)… At … o’clock. 

¿Cuál prefieres…o…? Which do you 

prefer…or…? 

Yo prefiero… I prefer… 

¿Dónde se prueba la 

ropa? 

Where do you try on 

the clothes? 

Se prueba la ropa 

aquí/allá. 

You can try on the 

clothes here/ over 

there. 

¿Aceptan Uds. las 

tarjetas de créditos? 

Do you accept credit 

cards? 

Sí aceptamos las tarjetas 

de crédito. 

/No aceptamos las 

tarjetas de crédito. 

Yes we accept credit 

cards. / No we don’t 

accept credit cards. 

¿Quieres ir de 

compras? 

Do you want to go 

shopping? 

Sí/No quiero ir de 

compras. 

Yes I want/ No I don’t 

want to go shopping. 

¿En qué puedo 

ayudarle? / 

¿Qué desea usted? 

How can I help you? Yo deseo/Yo necesito… I want…/I need… 

¿Cómo te queda(n)? How does it fit? Me queda(n) bien. 

No me queda(n) bien. 

It fits well. 

It doesn’t fit well. 

¿Tiene Ud. la talla…? Do you have size…? Sí/ No tenemos la talla… Yes we have/ No we 

don’t have size… 

¿De qué color quiere 

Ud.? 

What color do you 

want? 

Yo quiero… I want… 

¿De qué color es…? 

¿De qué colores son…? 

What color is…? 

What colors are…? 

La camisa es roja. 

Las botas son amarillas. 

The shirt is red. 

The boots are yellow. 

¿Qué llevas hoy? What are you wearing 

today? 

Yo llevo… I’m wearing… 

Perdón/ Con permiso Excuse me Lo siento. I’m sorry. 

la ropa de moda fashionable clothes otro/ otra other 

 

 



Noun-Adjective agreement 
 

*All nouns must agree in gender and in number in Spanish!* 
 

 if the noun is masculine, the adjective must ends in an –o (if it can change) 

Ex.  el vestido rojo – the red dress 

 

 if the noun is feminine, the adjective must end in an –a (if it can change) 

Ex.  la corbata negra – the black tie 

 

If you need to make the noun or adjective plural:  
 if the word ends in a vowel – add an “s” 

Ex.  las camisas verdes 

 

 if the words ends in a consonant – add “es” 

Ex.  los cinturones marrones – the brown belts 

 

*Don’t forget that “el”  “los” and “la”  “las” when you make a word plural! 

 

 

Apuntes – “al” and “a la” 
 

In Spanish, there are four different ways to say “to the”.  The difference is if the word starts 

with el, la, los or las.  These are the four different ways: 

 

al*  a la  a los  a las     =  to the 

 

One of the four is a contraction.  It is the combination of a+el=al.  When you use the verb to go 

(ir) in Spanish, this happens a lot.  Please make sure you check! 

 

Práctica: 

1.  We go to the department store. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

2.  He goes to the college/university. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

3.  I go to the library. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

4.  They (m) go to the bank. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

5.  She goes to the shoe store. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

6.  You all (in Spain) go to the airport. 

________________________________________________________________________



Apuntes – “del” and “de la” 
 

In Spanish, there are four different ways to say “of/from the”.  The difference is if the word 

starts with el, la, los or las.  These are the four different ways: 

 

del*   de la   de los    de las 

 

One of the four is a contraction.  It is the combination of de + el = del.  When you use the verb 

estar  in Spanish with directions, this happens a lot.  Please make sure you check your answers! 

*Note – sometimes you need “de” in the sentence and it doesn’t translate into English! 

 

Práctica: 
 

1.  The restaurant is behind the house. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

2.  The fruit store far from the museum. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

3.  The bookstore is next to the park. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

4.  The dance club is to the right of the temple. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

*When using the word “between” (entre) in Spanish, you have to use “and” (y) with it. 

 

5.  The church is between the school and the zoo. 

______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Demonstrative Adjectives - *”This” and “These” have “T’s” 

este* this (m) esta* this (f) 

estos* these (m) estas* these (f) 

ese that (m) esa that (f) 

esos those (m) esas those (m) 

 

Práctica - Write out the following phrases 

1.  esa camisa ___________________________________ 

2.  este traje ____________________________________ 

3.  estos aretes __________________________________ 

4.  esas medias ___________________________________ 

Directions Song 

Izquierda, derecha, delante, detrás, 

Cerca y lejos y algo más, 

Abajo, arriba 

Enfrente, encima, 

Y ahora muchachos 

Se acaba la ritma. 

*Like possessive adjectives (mi, tu, 

su, nuestro), demonstrative 

adjectives replace “el, la, los, las”. 



Los verbos irregulares – Irregular Verbs 
 

pagar – to pay (in the past tense) 
* Remember the “Yo” form has a spelling change since the verb ends in “gar”.  I paid = Yo pagué 
 
costar (o  ue) – to cost 
cuesta it costs cuestan they cost 

 

ir – to go 
Yo voy Nosotros vamos 

Tú  vas Vosotros vais 

Él, Ella, Usted (Ud.) va Ellos, Ellas, Ustedes (Uds.) van 

 

querer  (e  ie) – to want 
Yo quiero Nosotros queremos 

Tú  quieres Vosotros queréis 

Él, Ella, Usted (Ud.) quiere Ellos, Ellas, Ustedes (Uds.) quieren 

 

poder (o  ue) – to be able to (can) 
Yo puedo Nosotros podemos 

Tú  puedes Vosotros podéis 

Él, Ella, Usted (Ud.) puede Ellos, Ellas, Ustedes (Uds.) pueden 

 

ponerse - to put on 
Me pongo I put on Nosotros nos ponemos We put on 

Te pones You (friend) put on Vosotros os ponéis You all (Spain) put on 

Él, Ella se pone 

Usted (Ud.) se pone 

He, She puts on 

You (formal) put on 

Ellos/Ellas se ponen 

Ustedes (Uds.) se 

ponen 

They put on 

You all put on 

 

Los verbos SABER y CONOCER 
 

Both “saber” and “conocer” mean “to know” in Spanish.  They are not used interchangeably!   

The verb “saber” is used for: 

 knowing a fact 

 to have some information about something  

 to know how to do something 
 

saber – to know 
Yo sé Nosotros sabemos 

Tú  sabes Vosotros sabéis 

Él, Ella, Usted (Ud.) sabe Ellos, Ellas, Ustedes (Uds.) saben 

 

Examples:   Yo sé dónde está el mercado. – I know where the market is. 
         Ellos saben regatear. – They know how to bargain. 



The verb “conocer” is used for: 

 to know (as in being acquainted/familiar with) 

 used with people and complex or abstract concepts rather than simple facts 

 
conocer – to know 
Yo conozco Nosotros conocemos 

Tú  conoces Vosotros conocéis 

Él, Ella, Usted (Ud.) conoce Ellos, Ellas, Ustedes (Uds.) conocen 

 

Examples:  Yo conozco a Luis. – I know Luis.  
                  Ella conoce a su hermano. – She knows her brother. 
 
                  Los alumnos conocen bien la arquitectura española. 

                 The students know Spanish architecture well. 
 

Present Tense Verb Endings (Regular Verbs) 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The –ar endings are: 

 

Yo        o   Nosotros  amos 

Tú        as   Vosotros áis 

Él    Ellos   

Ella       a   Ellas  an 

Usted    Ustedes 

  

The –er endings are: 

 

Yo       o   Nosotros  emos 

Tú       es   Vosotros éis 

Él    Ellos   

Ella       e   Ellas  en 

Usted    Ustedes  
 

The –ir endings are: 

 

Yo       o   Nosotros  imos 

Tú      es   Vosotros ís 

Él    Ellos   

Ella      e   Ellas  en 

Usted    Ustedes  
 

} } 

} } 

} } 



Preterite Tense Verb Endings (Regular Verbs) 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

El pretérito de los verbos IR y SER 
The verbs “IR” and “SER” have the exact same irregular verb forms in the preterite tense.  You 

can determine the difference in meaning by the context of the sentence. 

ir – to go ser – to be 

Yo fui Nosotros fuimos 

Tú  fuiste Vosotros fuisteis 

Él, Ella, Usted (Ud.)  fue Ellos, Ellas, Ustedes (Uds.) fueron 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The following are some time expressions you will want to use when referring to the 

present and the past. 
 

Presente     Pasado  

hoy - today     ayer - yesterday  

esta noche - tonight    anoche – last night 

esta tarde – this afternoon   ayer por la tarde – yesterday afternoon 

este año – this year    el año pasado - last year 

esta semana – this week   la semana pasada – last week 

este fin de semana – this weekend  el fin de semana pasada – last weekend 

The –ar endings are: 

 

Yo        é   Nosotros  amos 

Tú        aste  Vosotros asteis 

Él    Ellos   

Ella       ó   Ellas  aron 

Usted    Ustedes 

  

} } 
The –er & -ir endings are: 

 

Yo        í   Nosotros  imos 

Tú        iste  Vosotros isteis 

Él    Ellos   

Ella       ió   Ellas  ieron 

Usted    Ustedes 

  

} } 



Los comparativos y los superlativos 
 

Making Comparisons 
 

 To make comparisons with adjectives, use the following formulas: 

más + adjective + que  more…than 

menos + adjective + que less…than 

 

 The adjective agrees in both gender and number with the noun it modifies. 

 

Example: La falda es más larga que los pantalones cortos. 

     The skirt is longer than the shorts. 
    Las sandalias son menos caras que los zapatos. 

     The sandals are less expensive than the shoes. 
Práctica: 

1.  The pants are more expensive than the shorts. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

2.  The t-shirt is cheaper than the sweater. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Superlatives (expressing someone is the best at something) 

 
 To express the superlative, you use the definite article (el, la, los, las) and “más”.  “De” 

follows the superlative. 

 

           Example: Ella es la muchacha más simpática de todas.  

   She is the nicest girl (out of everyone.) 
                          

                        Su hermano es el más inteligente de la clase.  

                        Her brother is the most intelligent in the class. 
 
Práctica: 

1.  He is the most handsome (out of everyone). 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

2.  They (m) are the ugliest in the school. 

________________________________________________________________________ 


